



Urban Montessori Charter School

Minutes

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time

Thursday January 25, 2024 at 5:30 PM

Location

4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619. Ring the front bell or call/text 510-290-4005 for entry. Signage on campus will direct you to the correct room, generally the Head of School's Office.

The public may comment and participate <u>via Zoom</u> if they prefer. The public may also email comments to board@urbanmontessori.org to be shared by the Board's Secretary during the meeting. Please make that intention clear in your email.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82592855160?pwd=cG02OTRoUVdrdngwOTI2WFBrOTBzQT09

Meeting ID: 825 9285 5160; Passcode 510 842 1181

One tap mobile

- +16699009128,,82592855160# US (San Jose)
- +12532158782,,82592855160# US (Tacoma)

Dial by your location

- +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
- +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
- +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
- +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
- +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
- +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

Meeting ID: 825 9285 5160

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k1Y3eQWvA

Additional teleconference locations: 3225 Bayo Vista Ave, Alameda 94501

This meeting will be audio recorded. The public can find documents related to this agenda either linked directly on the agenda or under "Documents" after selecting the meeting in BoardOnTrack prior to viewing the agenda. Downloading the "packet" may not include all of the "Documents" that are still otherwise available to the public via the Meeting on BoardOnTrack.

Members: Kara Fortuna, Greg Klein, Sarah Morrill (Chair), Amy Ng, Ann Rhodes, Donald Williams

Urban Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of the organization in public. Your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our school and assists the Board in making the best decisions for our school. To assist you in the ease of speaking/participating in our meetings, guidelines are provided at the bottom of this agenda. All materials for all board and committee meetings, including audio recordings of Regular Board Meetings, are available on our Montes School Calendar.

Directors Present

A. Ng, A. Rhodes (remote), E. Sequoia, G. Klein, K. Fortuna, S. Morrill

Directors Absent

D. Williams

Guests Present

D. Bissonnette, K. Feeney

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

S. Morrill called a meeting of the board of directors of Urban Montessori Charter School to order on Thursday Jan 25, 2024 at 5:35 PM.

B. Record Attendance

C. Review of Action/Discussion Items

Sarah tabled the community agreements discussion for tonight.

D. Board and Community Appreciations

Kara appreciated the smooth return to school coming back from Winter Break. Kara appreciated middle school students and middle school team to help with traffic. Echoed by Sarah.

Sarah appreciated Daniel who's been helping in Primary.

Daniel appreciated Tobie, Jodi, Steph, and Melody for staying and leading the Family Education Night on mathematics. Emily echoed this appreciation.

Greg appreciated Evan for joining the Board as a member.

Greg appreciated Krishna for all her years of service to the school as the Head of School. Sarah appreciated Krishna's thoughtfulness around the timing of her transition to support the school.

Amy appreciated Daniel for answering questions during committee meetings.

E. Board Member Comment

No comments on items not on the agenda.

F. Presentations from the Floor

No public comments on items not on the agenda.

G. Community Agreements Discussion

Tabled.

II. Head of School Report

A. Head of School Report

Krishna shared about recent and upcoming events, including Family Engagement Night yesterday; Winter NWEA happening now; OUSD Board Vice President Hutchinson coming to visit February 5th; No School 2/16 for Staff PD day; Family Observations are the week week of February 20; and Conferences are week of February 26. Krishna shared enrollment applications updates and the school will join the Enrollment Fair this coming weekend. Sarah asked and Greg shared OUSD's latest application numbers that were shared at OUSD's most recent board meeting. Kara asked and Krishna responded that the school won't fill up a Primary classroom with additional Kinder students in the scenario of having fewer TK students, because that has impacts in the later years throughout Lower Elementary grades. On Staffing, the school recently welcomed Mx. T as a Support Teacher in Manzanita and Ms. J as a Student Support Assistant. Currently looking to hire another SSA. Greg asked and Krishna shared that she is the only member of the administrative team that has stated that they don't intent to return to the school in the same role.

No public comments on this item.

B. Mid Year Review of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)

Krishna shared an overview of the LCAP, and update on the school's 2023-2024 LCAP. This year there is a new requirement for the board to receive a midyear update on the LCAP. Krishna and her team added midyear data updates to the goal metrics and action items. Academic growth data overall is trending higher than the prior year, and in subgroups. Chronic absence rates are trending lower than the prior year, but the attendance rate is also. Krishna shared that there are some metrics that aren't updatable midyear, like if measured by SBAC. Krishna clarified that there was no template provided for this update, and Greg clarified that there is a template provided to use at the end of 2023-2024 as part of the 2024-2025 LCAP adoption.

No public comments on this item.

C. Proposal for Ongoing Growth and Development at UMCS

Sarah shared how the Board had prior discussion with the Head and Assistant Head on goals that would drive the school to being widely successful over the longer term. The Admin team and staff developed six goals and have been working on them for over a year now. This proposal is a reflection from the Admin team on what is still needed in terms of investment for more progress to be made, and across all the goals. The staff have had access to this proposal, too, but also need more time to weigh-in. Most of the progress has been in the goals related to the day-to-day operations of the school, and less progress has been made in the larger goals of Montessori credentialing and training, fundraising, and serving three year olds and the facilities and Human Resources implications of that in Primary classrooms. Sarah asked and Daniel clarified that the admin team all worked on this proposal. Greg asked if the admin team was looking for the Board's approval and if so tonight. Krishna clarified, no, not tonight, and that the Board's work will likely be more so to approve a final budget, and that this proposal is a preliminary recommendation that will get further refined for consideration in the budget. The basic consideration is whether or not, and then also how much investment to make and for how long, if the investment requires to utilizing the fund balance. Emily commented that it's important for parents and the FAC to also work in alignment towards the same goals, and perhaps help more in some areas as volunteers. Sarah echoed that comment. The Board discussed the need to focus on school facilities improvement, including with families, and that there hasn't been sufficient capacity to really dream bigger. Krishna shared that the school can operate its status quo as is, but can't grow the training center or consider serving three year-olds without upfront investment. How the potential new positions would be incorporated into the organization chart was discussed. Greg offered that the Finance committee could spend time in February looking at a more detailed financial scenario. Amy commented about the discrete areas of the proposed work and if there are different scenarios to consider on how best to staff up the proposed FTE. Daniel commented that the idea is for the initial investment in capacity would need to bring in revenue to pay for itself and more. Sarah shared next steps of the Finance committee discussing financial scenarios and Executive and Governance committee

discussing organizational structure scenarios. In the meantime, staff, FAC, and the public can continue to do discuss and weigh-in on the proposal.

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Gf5SICWjpMBft5r6LThxjKor2Xy-dov q9jii5XgDgw/edit#heading=h.zfmkyxtx7kzv

No other public comments on this item.

III. Executive & Governance Committee

A. Head of School Transition Discussion

Sarah shared the current Head of School job description and asked the Board and participants to read and make suggestions or comments. The job description is available under the Documents of this meeting. After reading, the discussion was that the document was recently adjusted and will continue to work as is. Emily asked the group discussed if there's a weighting of importance of some areas over others. Sarah shared that it will be important to look at a candidate in the context of the team's existing capacities, and how the pieces might fit (or not). Sarah then shared a proposal for a search process, which would be to invite staff to an internal process first. Any qualified internal candidates would go through three panels: students; teachers & families; and Board. The proposal is available under the Documents of this meeting. If no internal candidate is hired, then the Board would search for an external candidate. Greg asked and Sarah clarified that all qualified internal candidates who submit an application can access the panels process. The Board discussed using the school's applicant tracking system. The Board discussed inviting applications next week, helping hosting panels, and the Board panel happen at the next meeting. The Board discussed interviewing some questions in public where appropriate, and some in closed session. Greg commented that he was glad the Board would first consider any internal candidates, and that it can be risky in that any internal candidate not offered the role might consider leaving the school. The benefits, though, of taking that risk are that it's possible to find the right person much sooner and without an expensive search.

No other public comments on this item.

B. Board and Committee Officers & Members

- G. Klein made a motion to add Evan to the Executive and Governance Committee.
- K. Fortuna seconded the motion.

Greg shared an overview of the committees and their current schedules. No public comments on this item.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- S. Morrill Aye
- E. Sequoia Aye

Roll Call

A. Rhodes Aye

A. Ng Aye

D. Williams Absent

K. Fortuna Aye

G. Klein Aye

IV. Family Advisory Council

A. Discussion Item - Committee Report

Marcela shared FAC election results, including her serving as President; Rachel and Emily Taylor are Co-VPs; Sara Kagan Real is Secretary; Evan is the Board rep, along with Ann who was elected previously; Sarah and Jill are Facility working group co-leads; Lauren is the Academic work group lead; Community building lead is Kara.

Marcela and the FAC leaders will be hosting Mondays at 2:30pm once a month, the next one is February 12th. The next FAC Zoom is this coming Wednesday at 8:30pm. These are a way for more folks to attend one or the other meeting to help with engagement. Greg shared his appreciation for all the new leaders and volunteers.

Emily shared how she hopes the FAC can support more with school Goings Out and field trips.

No public comments on this item.

V. Academic Oversight Committee

A. Committee Report

Kara gave the report. Tobie joined the last meeting and Daniel's presentation to the committee is included in the public documents. The committee discussed a lot of different data sets including attendance, NWEA, staff/student/family survey results, and the LCAP update.

There were no questions or public comments on this item.

VI. Other Business

A. Oakland and California Updates

Greg shared that the OUSD agendized their school calendar the prior night for approval. [Note, OUSD did not approve that item, and is expected to take it back up at a future Board meeting, and OUSD staff indicated moving their First Day later but still within the same week as proposed.] Greg shared about the Governor's January budget proposal and less than one percent cost of living adjustment. Greg shared about the upcoming

elections that include Alameda County Board of Education Trustees and the importance of participating and voting. Greg asked for help with a website audit process and Amy volunteered. Greg shared about OUSD's proposal for possible criteria on which to consider school mergers.

No public comments on this item.

B. Approve Minutes from December 22, 2023 Special Meeting

- K. Fortuna made a motion to approve the minutes from Special Board Meeting on 12-22-23.
- S. Morrill seconded the motion.

No questions or public comments on the minutes.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- S. Morrill Aye
- G. Klein Aye
- A. Rhodes Aye
- D. Williams Absent
- K. Fortuna Aye
- E. Sequoia Aye
- A. Ng Aye

C. Action Item - Vote on General Consent Report

- G. Klein made a motion to approve the General Consent Report.
- K. Fortuna seconded the motion.

No questions or public comments on this item.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- A. Ng Aye
- E. Sequoia Aye
- D. Williams Absent
- S. Morrill Aye
- G. Klein Aye
- A. Rhodes Aye
- K. Fortuna Aye

D. Collect New Business items for Future Meetings

None.

VII. Closed Session

A.

Closed Session Items

At 7:39pm, Sarah announced that the board would go into closed session on Public Employee Performance Evaluation - Head of School. There were no public comments.

VIII. Return to Open Session

A. Report out of any closed session action(s)

The board returned to open session at 8:09pm. Sarah shared that no actions were taken.

IX. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:09 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

G. Klein

Documents used during the meeting

- UMCS December Balance Sheet 1.18.24.pdf
- UMCS December 2024 FC Presentation.pdf
- UMCS December Cash Flow 1.18.24.pdf
- UMCS December Forecast 1.18.24-2.pdf
- UMCS December Forecast 1.18.24.pdf
- UMCS SARC 22_23.pdf

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY The Governing Board's presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS MAY BE MADE Notice is hereby given that, consistent with the requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, special presentations not mentioned in the agenda may be made at this meeting. However, any such presentation will be for information only.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting UMCS at 4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619 or info@urbanmontessori.org.

FOR MORE INFORMATION For more information concerning this agenda or for materials relating to this meeting, please contact UMCS at 4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619 or board@urbanmontessori.org. All materials are available via the BoardOnTrack portal of our website: https://www.urbanmontessori.org/boardontrackportal.